June 15, 2025

PINE PLAINS PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, June 1llth, 2025
7:30 PM
In Person and Zoom

IN PERSON ATTENDANCE: Michael Stabile, Chairman
Kate Osofsky, Co-Chair
Al Blackburn
Scott Cavey
Ethan DiMaria
Dick Hermans
Steve Patterson
Robert Strong, Alternate

ABSENT: Ari Kardasis, Alternate
ALSO PRESENT: Ed Casazza, Town ZEO

Warren Replansky, via Zoom
Kevin Walsh, Town Board Liaison, in

Person

Jeanine Sisco, Town Board Member, in
person

George Schmidt, Town Engineer, in
person

Jamie Hammel, The Hudson Co., in person
Caren LoBrutto, LaBella Associates for
Kyle Bardwell, LaBella Associates
Daniel Leary, Hammel’s counsel, via
Zoom

Dale Mitchell, applicant

Steve Hobson, applicant

Wesley Chase, surveyor for applicants
Members of the Public, in person

Chairman Stabile opened the meeting at 7:30PM with a gquorum
present.

TAPNZ Mini Homes (8:56-40:34): Stabile asked Mitchell if he
would be speaking - Mitchell replied yes, he was here to answer
any questions regarding his sign permit. Stabile then asked
Casazza to give an update about what is happening at the site.
Casazza said because of the new activity there he asked Mitchell
to appear before the board. Stabile said Mitchell had approval
for a sign a few years ago for a company to sell off the
remaining sheds, which was a 6-month approval. After which



June 15,2025

Mitchell started a new application as Apex, which was then
pulled. Stabile said multiple buildings are showing up on the
site, which seems to be a new use. Mitchell disagreed that it
was a new use. Stabile said if a use is not used for one year
it lapses. Replansky agreed that this was correct.

Stabile said the additional issue is that the plot of land the
mini homes are on will be becoming a part of The Hudson Co.
where their septic will be located. The sale will be going
through once the lot line adjustment is approved. Hammel said
once the sale goes through Mitchell will be leasing the property
for 2 years while the construction is happening. Stabile asked
Replansky how the board should proceed. Replansky said it is
pretty complicated. Replansky asked how big the property is.
Mitchell replied the piece Hammel is buying is about 7 acres.
Replansky said nothing should be happening on the property while
the board is reviewing The Hudson Co. application. Replansky
said the use is expired. Mitchell said he disagrees it 1is
expired, as they have always used it for the same purpose as the
business evolved. Replansky said the zoning enforcement officer
needs to determine i1if there was a discontinuation of use, not
the planning board. If the ZEO cannot make a decision he may
have to refer to the ZBA for a hearing. Stabile asked if the
ZEO does consider continuing its use can they put new buildings
on it while the planning board is in the middle of this process
with The Hudson Co. Replansky replied if the use is continued,
and the permits are still valid, then he probably could continue
the use until The Hudson Co. is approved, at which point it
should be stopped. Stabile asked Casazza if he had made a
determination and he replied no, he has to do some research.

Replansky said if the parcel, which was thought to be a part of
The Hudson Co., is going to be a part of another use then the
public hearing for The Hudson Co. cannot take place since the
application would need to be amended. LoBrutto said Hammel
wasn’t fully aware of Mitchell’s plan so it wasn’t obscured on
their behalf. Mitchell said it is a part of their contract to
lease the property back to him for two years. Replansky asked
if this was a part of The Hudson Co.’s application. Stabile
said it is not. Replansky said the agreement is of no
consequence for the application in front of the planning board.

Replansky said more factual history should be presented to the
ZEO.

Stabile asked if the hearing could proceed. Replansky said as
far as they are concerned it is not part of the application but



June 15,2025

if that is what is intended on the property the hearing cannot
take place until the application is amended. Chase, ZBA
chairman, said the applicant does not control the property yet.
DiMaria said the lot line adjustment is a part of the
application for The Hudson Co. Replansky asked if Mitchell
signed off on this application and LoBrutto said yes. Hammel
sald the two-year period is a time for Mitchell to sell off his
inventory while he builds his building. Replansky said all of
this should have been stated in the application. Hermans said
it was stated that the buildings would be removed. DiMaria said
the issue is there are new buildings in place. Replansky asked
what the original proposal from The Hudson Co. was for the
property. LoBrutto said it will be an expansion area for the
septic. LoBrutto said the leasing aspect was certain when the
application was submitted. The two-year lease was to remove the
buildings from the property. LoBrutto and Hammel are just
learning about the tiny homes placed on the property. Replansky
asked if the buildings would remain on site now. LoBrutto said
they will still all be removed, the two years was just a grace
period to have them removed from the property. Replansky asked
if there was any agreement about operating a business on that
site for the two years. LoBrutto replied no. Replansky asked
if that is what Mitchell is proposing now and LoBrutto replied
ves. Replansky said then it is a different application.
Replansky asked Schmidt for his opinion. Schmidt said from the
applicant’s standpoint they are not changing their application
as submitted. Schmidt said there is a full application with
owner’s authorization as submitted so he feels the hearing can
take place. LoBrutto said there isn’t an agreement so it cannot
be added to their application. Mitchell said if it is going to
be a big problem for Hammel then he will remove the buildings
once the lot line adjustment is completed.

The Hudson Company Public Hearing (40:35-1:45:30): Stabile asked
for a motion to open the public hearing, motion by DiMaria,
second by Patterson, all in favor, motion carried. Hammel
introduced himself and gave a brief summary of the project and
his company.

LoBrutto then gave a brief summary of the different requirements
needed, including a site plan, special use permit, area
variances, etc.

Stabile then opened it up to the public to speak. The first
speaker was Gail Mellow, the chair of the town’s CAC. Mellow
asked about the sort of traffic there will be and its impact on



June 15, 2025

the town’s roads. Mellow also asked about the lakes that
surround Stissing Mountain and where the drainage will be for
all the activities proposed and is there a way to make it have
the littlest impact on these lakes.

The next speaker was Scott Chase, chair of the ZBA, Chase said
he would like to see the property have a bikeway/trail system

connecting to the town, as stated in the town’s comprehensive

plan.

The next speaker was Bill Abrams. Abrams said he was concerned
about the noise level he may hear being a resident of Myrtle
Avenue.

The next speaker was Charles Wessler. Wessler said he 1is
concerned about his house he had recently built, about a mile
and a half from the project, after having to sell his previous
home in Rhinebeck when a mine was put in nearby. Wessler is
also concerned about the traffic the project may create.
Wessler said his greatest concern is the noise level.

The next speaker was Tom McElroy. McElroy said he is also
concerned about the noise level as he is also a resident of
Myrtle Avenue. McElroy is also concerned about the traffic
level and the path the trucks will take - will they be going
down smaller streets. McElroy also hopes the applicant is using
dark sky compliant lighting.

Abrams spoke again and reiterated his concern for the noise
level.

DiMaria let the public know that the notification letters were
sent to everyone within a 500 feet radius of Dale Mitchell’s
property, which is almost to Myrtle Ave, when the actual project
is proposed to be further away, not that noise cannot carry.
Stabile reiterated this and said the site itself is on Rt. 83.

LoBrutto said there was a mistake in their original submission
and there will be 3-4 tractor trailers a week, not a day. Hammel
said it is not every week, on average 2-3 a week, which is a
high estimation. Hammel then said there is a box truck that
leaves their facility every day.

Hammel said his business is all about recycling and
sustainability. Hammel said the only byproduct from their
processing is sawdust which is turned into briquettes or animal
bedding.



June 15,2025

Kyle Bardwell of LaBella Associates then spoke regarding how the
stormwater pollution prevention plan will work.

Hammel said he employs about 35 people, some work at other
locations, therefore there should be about 20 cars at the
proposed site a day. Customer cars would be few. The showroom
staff would be about 4-5 people.

LoBrutto said they are working on the trails that could connect
the location to the town and are totally for this.

Hammel said the landscaping will reflect a natural meadow.
Lighting will be minimal.

Hammel said the hours of operation are Monday through Friday 8am
to S5pm. Drivers will be in earlier, i.e. 4:30am. Stabile asked
when the sawing would begin. Hammel said it could start at 7am.
Hammel said the two noise sources would be the sawing of the
boards, a Wood-Mizer type saw that runs on gasoline. The other
source 1s the dust collector that will be behind the building.
There is an outside agency that worked on a noise study that
they will provide to the planning board after they review it.
LoBrutto said the study shows that the noise is not increased by
6 decibels which is the threshold that the dept of environmental
conservation for the state of New York suggests makes a
significant noise impact.

Hermans asked about the one building not having walls and is
there a comparable building at the current building for the
noise study and Hammel replied yes.

Hermans asked if there were alarms on the facility. Hammel said
there is an alarm that will call his cell phone in the night if

it goes off. It is only a security alarm, an internal alarm,
not external.

DiMaria asked i1if the DOT addressed the Rt. 83, Rt. 82
intersection at all. LoBrutto said the DOT was not consulted as
they do not have an application into them. Bardwell said as of
now that they are not proposing any improvements in the DOT
right of way. Bardwell said the board’s concern was on the
ponding at the culvert which they feel they will be improving.
LoBrutto said the ponding area is very low level. The culvert
opening 1is actually a bit higher than the bottom of the stream.
The culvert is not the problem, based on their analysis.
LoBrutto said the culvert is not their responsibility. LoBrutto



June 15, 2025

suggested the town reach out to the DOT regarding the culvert.
DiMaria asked about the increase of traffic at the same
intersection. LoBrutto said it was a suggestion that it get
referred to the DOT. LoBrutto said their study shows less than
30 trips during the peak hours. The threshold stated by SEQR is
100 trips. If an access point was needed off of Rt. 82 then
they would need to submit it to the DOT. They will be
submitting to the county, which they have already received
informal approval for the three driveways.

The board then reviewed Schmidt’s letter (see attached).

Bardwell said soil testing was done on site which was included
in the SWPPP.

Strong said he is concerned about the noise and asked about an
outside storage area. Hammel said his new site will all be
“front of house” so waste will be taken care of and saws stored
neatly. Hammel said the saw can make noise but it’s not nearly
as loud as a US Lumber, etc. Hammel welcomed the board to visit
and observe the current site.

Stabile asked for a motion to continue the public hearing and to
still accept written and emailed comments, motion by Hermans,
second Cavey. Stabile then asked for a motion to hold the
public hearing on July 1l6th at 7:35PM, motion by Blackbuzrn,
second Patterson, all in favor, motion carried.

HTWO Properties LLC (1:45:45-2:08:00): Steven Hobson explained
he owns the Stissing Storage property in town and he has
recently acquired the two parcels to the west of his current
location. Hobson would now like to join all three lots,
separating out the residential portion of 2814-2816 Church
Street from the commercial portion behind it. Hobson would like
to make the front section a .5 acre parcel and subdivide the
rear section into a horseshoe and combine it with 2812 Church
Street and his current lot at 2818 Church Street to eventually
build two more climate-controlled storage units and one more
regular storage unit. Hobson then reviewed his survey map with
the board. Strong said he was concerned a truck would not be
able to make the turn to get to the property in the back.

Stabile asked Casazza what the front yard setback is in this
zone. Casazza said a minimum of 10 feet with a maximum of 25
feet. Stabile asked how far the house is set back currently.
Hobson said roughly 80 feet.



June 15,2025

Stabile asked i1if he would eventually have another access to the
other sections. Hobson said for planning purposes he is keeping
the current entrance and exit. Stabile asked if he thought
about an accessory use dwelling on the third parcel. Hobson
said he would need a variance to shrink down the property of the
current residential building. Hobson said he did consider it
but in the long run to get a BOH approval would be difficult.
Hobson said if the board wanted a residential structure there to
keep it continuous it wasn’t out of the question, he could sell
it as a lot, but this would put his project further down the
line because he will not need septic, etc. for the storage
units.

Stabile said the board would need a complete survey for Hobson’s
application, i.e. showing all the buildings on the lot. Hobson
said once he demos the commercial building in the back lot he
will be better able to visualize it and have a better survey.

Stabile asked for a motion to schedule a public hearing for July
16t at 8pm, motion by Hermans, second by DiMaria, all in favor,
motion carried.

Patterson Lot Line Adjustment (2:11:23-2:23:54): Stabile said
Patterson and Osofsky will be recusing from this application due
to their personal affiliation with it. Chase said Patterson is
looking to add an accessory dwelling unit on his property for
his in-laws. Chase said they hired a PE to do some preliminary
testing, perc tests, etc. which the BOH said a septic system
would be viable and would fit in the lot. Chase said they were
also able to have Schultz Hill Farms, LLC sell them enough
property to be able to fit the AUD on their property. They will
have the right-of-way to enter the driveway used by Globe Hill
to access the unit.

Chase said they are trying to work as quickly as possible.
Chase said the first step is the lot line adjustment, followed
by the site plan approval.

Stabile asked if AUDs were only site plan approval. Casazza
said they are also a special use permit.

Chase asked that the lot line adjustment and special use permit
be treated as two different applications with the lot line
hearing being waived.

Strong asked where the water supply and electric would come
from. The applicant replied off the main house.



June 15, 2025

Schmidt said the lot line adjustment can be waived and approved
by the board. Chase said treating the two applications as
separate will help him to streamline the process and would show
the public that they already own the parcel for the special use
permit public hearing.

Stabile asked for a motion to waive the public hearing for the
lot line adjustment. Motion by DiMaria, second by Blackburn,
all in favor, motion carried. Stabile then asked for a motion
to approve the lot line adjustment, with an amended map that
Chase will provide, motion by Blackburn, second by Hermans, all
in favor, motion carried. Stabile then asked for a motion to
set a public hearing for July 16th at 8:15PM for the special
permit for the accessory use dwelling, motion by Blackburn,
second by Cavey, all in favor, motion carried.

Approval of the May Meeting Minutes: Stabile asked for a motion
to accept the May meeting minutes after changes made by DiMaria

regarding the fire district and department are completed, motion
by Blackburn, second by Hermans, all in favor, motion carried.

Other Business: DiMaria mentioned looking into the Fire
Company’s new sign.

Stabile asked for a motion to adjourn at 9:50PM, motion by
DiMaria, second by Hermans, all in favor, motion carried.

Respectfully submitted by:

Tricia Devine Michael Stabile



D
L

June

10, 2025

Mr. Michael Stabile
Planning Board Chairman
P.O. Box 955

Pine

Re: T

Dear

Plains, NY 12567
he Hudson Company

Chairman Stabile,

This Office has reviewed the most recently submitted site plan for the above
referenced project dated May 22, 2025 prepared by Labella PC. The following
comments are offered for your use in your review.

As previously recommended, a Jurisdictional Determination letter
should be provided from the NYSDEC regarding the onsite freshwater
wetlands.

As previously noted, the proposed site grading and infiltration basin
discharges are in close proximity to the federal wetland boundary
shown. It is recommended that a note be added to the plans that
states,” Freshwater Wetland Boundary shown hereon to be marked by
a Licensed Land Surveyor and an orange snow fence erected thereon
with signage stating protected areas keep out”. There is to be no
disturbance beyond this fencing during construction.

As previously stated, correspondence from both the Dutchess County
Highway Dept. and Health Dept should be provided to the Board.

As previously requested, it is recommended that a structural analysis
of the foot bridge and culvert crossings be provided to the board. It
appears that both structures are proposed for use.

The SWPPP identifies Micropool Extended Detention ponds as the
stormwater practices for this site (p.13). However, the practices shown
on the plans do not reflect micropool extended detention ponds.
Please revise as may be necessary.

As previously requested it is recommended that the soil boring logs for
the proposed stormwater practices be provided within, the SWPPP

CPL Architecture | Engineering | Planning 26 IBM Road, Poughkeepsie, NY 12601 845.454.3411 CPLteam.com



Mr. Michael Stabile

co Hudson Company Review
June 10, 2025

L Page 2 of 2

report. The soil data in the SWPPP indicates poorly drained soils C/D,
and ground water at 0.75' below grade (p. 3) and a depth to ground
water of 0.75" or 9 inches. Table 6.9 of the SWDM indicates soils of
groups C and D are not suitable for infiltration practices. The soil test
included within the SWPPP does not speak to potential seasonal high
ground water level. Seasonal high ground water levels should be
established to ensure the stormwater systems function as intended. It
should be noted that table 6.10 indicates a minimum vertical
separation distance of 2 ft between the bottom of the infiltration basin
and seasonal high water.

7. As previously recommended and discussed at last month’s meeting,
the NYSDOT should be contacted to determine if there any issues
regarding proposed traffic and or stormwater concerns with the
existing 36" culvert under NYS Rte. 82.

8. There now appears to be a proposed trail along the NYS route. Again,
the NYSDOT should be asked to opine. Not withstanding the NYSDOT
review, the trail appears to be constructed of mulch this wear surface
does not meet ADA requirements, who will own and maintain this trail
and what does this trail connect to?

9. As previously recommended, a noise study should be prepared and

submitted to the board for review.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free
to contact me at 518-267-3290 or via email at gschmitt@cplteam.com.

Very truly yours,

George Schmitt
Senior Engineering Project Manager



